
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

From: Ben Stanley 
To: Becca Nash 
Cc: Janelle Taylor; Brad Hagemeier; Greg Knopff; Daniel Mueller; Patrick McCormack; Matt Gehring; Tom Bottern; 

Kathy Pontius; Carlon Doyle Fontaine 
Subject: LCCMR Background Checks - Memo & Starting Point for Bill Draft 
Date: Monday, July 27, 2020 1:37:53 PM 
Attachments: Memo - Proposed Background Check Legislation.pdf 

Bill Draft - Background Checks Required for LCCMR Grantees (SC7692-1).pdf 

Director Nash, 

House and Senate staff have jointly prepared the attached memorandum and bill draft in response 
to the background check discussion that took place at the July 2, 2020, LCCMR meeting. The 
commissioners requested that various specific members of House and Senate staff review these 
documents and the list of those who have done so can be found in the first footnote of the 
memorandum. 

It is important to note that the bill draft is not complete per se but is really just a starting point. All it 
does is attempt to convert the language in Mike Reese’s first motion into a starting point for further 
discussion. We think the following issues still need to be resolved or discussed by LCCMR members if 
they want to move forward with this draft bill: 

What has to happen if a background check crime is identified through a background check? Is 
that person fired, kept away from children, or what? 
What is the relevant time period? Do the commissioners care about a background check 
crime committed twenty years ago? 
How often does a background check need to be completed? Only when a person is hired or 
periodically? 
Should the bill somehow address the cost of conducting these background checks? 
Requiring background checks is normally something that is a part of the hiring or occupational 
licensing process. It is a little unorthodox to require it just in order to access a particular 
stream of grant funding. 
The bill contains language that ensures that LCCMR members and staff are not liable for 
background check problems, but it does create at least the specter of lawsuits against 
grantees who fail to properly perform background checks, fire someone who is revealed to 
have committed a background check crime, etc. 
There are simpler ways of achieving more or less the same end. The commission could simply 
ask applicants about their background check processes as part of the RFP process or a statute 
could require a grantee to simply certify that they have a background check system in place. 

Please let us know if you have any questions. 

Thank you, 

House and Senate Nonpartisan Staff 

Senate Counsel 
Office of Senate Counsel, Research, and Fiscal Analysis 
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 TO:    Becca Nash, Director of the Legislative-Citizen Commission on Minnesota      


   Resources 


 


 FROM: Senate and House Nonpartisan Staff1 


  


 DATE: July 27, 2020 


 


 RE: Questions Re: Criminal Background Check Requirement for ENRTF Grantees


 


This memorandum is in response to two proposals discussed at the July 2, 2020, meeting of the 


Legislative-Citizen Commission on Minnesota Resources (LCCMR) and the questions that 


followed. Under the first proposal, LCCMR would amend its operating procedures to require that 


all recipients of money from the environment and natural resources trust fund (ENRTF) who 


work with children certify to the commission that they have a criminal background check system 


in place for all employees and volunteers. Under an alternative proposal, the commission would 


request that the chairs of the appropriate legislative committees introduce a bill that would create 


such a requirement in statute. The meeting was adjourned before action could be taken on either 


proposal, and numerous questions have been raised about them. This memorandum collects and 


answers those questions.  


 


CAN THE LCCMR CREATE A BACKGROUND CHECK REQUIREMENT BY 


ADDING ONE TO ITS OWN OPERATING PROCEDURES? 


 


Minnesota Statutes create the LCCMR and delineate the scope of its authority.2 The statutes 


contain several prerequisites and limitations on the use of ENRTF money,3 but none of them 


appear intended to authorize the commission to create new prerequisites or limitations on the 


expenditure of LCCMR money.  


 


Current LCCMR operating procedures deal exclusively with the conduct of the commission, its 


members, and staff, and do not contain any substantive limitations on how grantees use trust 


fund money.  It is difficult to make a case that requiring grantees to perform a background check 


 
1 The following nonpartisan staff contributed to or reviewed this memorandum: Tom Bottern, Carlon Doyle 


Fontaine, Matt Gehring, Greg Knopff, Patrick McCormack, Dan Mueller, Kathy Pontius, Ben Stanley, and Janelle 


Taylor. 
2 Minnesota Statutes § 116P.05. 
3 See e.g., Minnesota Statutes § 116P.05, subd. 2, paragraph (b) (“It is a condition of acceptance of the 


appropriations made from the Minnesota environment and natural resources trust fund, …that the agency or entity 


receiving the appropriation must submit a work plan….”). 
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is more like a “procedure” of the LCCMR, rather than a substantive prerequisite or limitation on 


a grant.  


 


CAN THE LCCMR LAWFULLY MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE 


LEGISLATURE ABOUT ADOPTING BACKGROUND CHECK REQUIREMENTS? 


 


Minnesota statutes require the LCCMR to biennially submit a report to the legislature that 


includes “any findings or recommendations that are deemed proper to assist the legislature in 


formulating legislation.”4 The legislature has thus authorized the commission to make any 


recommendations it deems proper.  


 


The statutes also require the LCCMR to periodically submit a bill to the legislature with 


recommended appropriations from the ENRTF, and that bill routinely includes all sorts of 


recommendations for limiting and qualifying the use of ENRTF money.5  


 


Even if this were not the case, since the act of making recommendations is not legally binding on 


anyone—indeed has no legal effect at all—such an act does not require legal authority. Any 


person or entity may make recommendations to the legislature and need not cite legal authority 


to do so. 


 


SINCE IT BRIEFLY DISCUSSED RECOMMENDING GRANTEE BACKGROUND 


CHECKS BUT ULTIMATELY DID NOT DO SO, COULD THE COMMISSION OR 


COMMISSIONERS BE FOUND NEGLIGENT IF A CHILD WERE SUBSEQUENTLY 


ABUSED BY A GRANTEE?  


 


We think this is unlikely.  Multiple immunity doctrines and statutes protect individual 


commissioners and the commission from liability arising out of the work of the commission. 


Furthermore, even without these immunity doctrines, there would be no liability for negligence 


in this case because the elements of a negligence claim are not satisfied.  While these theories 


don’t prevent a person from filing a claim – which would require the commission to engage in a 


lawsuit to assert its immunity – ultimately we think the risk that such a challenge would succeed 


is low.6 


 


IF GRANTEES WERE REQUIRED TO CERTIFY TO LCCMR THAT THEY HAD A 


BACKGROUND CHECK SYSTEM IN PLACE, COULD LCCMR STAFF BE LIABLE 


IF THEY FAILED TO ENSURE THE CERTIFICATION WAS RECEIVED?  


 


The proposed language imposes the duty to perform background checks on the grantee, and it is 


the grantee that is required to certify to LCCMR that it has and will continue to comply with the 


requirement. To allay all concerns, however, the proposed draft now includes language that 


clarifies that LCCMR staff cannot be held liable for any failure in connection with a grantee’s 


duty to perform background checks. 


 


 
4 Minnesota Statutes § 116P.09, subd. 7, clause (8). 
5 Minnesota Statutes § 116P.05, subd. 2, paragraph (a). 
6 Staff can provide a more detailed analysis of the immunity and negligence issues if this is something the 


commission would like to see.  
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ARE THERE ANY STATUTORY BACKGROUND CHECK REQUIREMENTS FOR 


RECIPIENTS OF LEGACY FUND MONEY?  


 


We are not aware of any statutory background check requirements that would apply solely 


because a recipient is using money from one of the four funds established by the Legacy 


Amendment. 
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1.1 A bill for an act​


1.2 relating to environment; requiring certain recipients of money appropriated from​
1.3 the environment and natural resources trust fund to perform criminal background​
1.4 checks on employees, volunteers, and contractors that work with children; amending​
1.5 Minnesota Statutes 2018, sections 116P.05, subdivision 2; 299C.62, subdivision​
1.6 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 116P.​


1.7 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:​


1.8 Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2018, section 116P.05, subdivision 2, is amended to read:​


1.9 Subd. 2. Duties. (a) The commission shall recommend an annual or biennial legislative​


1.10 bill for appropriations from the environment and natural resources trust fund and shall adopt​


1.11 a strategic plan as provided in section 116P.08. Approval of the recommended legislative​


1.12 bill requires an affirmative vote of at least 12 members of the commission.​


1.13 (b) It is a condition of acceptance of the appropriations made from the Minnesota​


1.14 environment and natural resources trust fund, and oil overcharge money under section 4.071,​


1.15 subdivision 2, that the agency or entity receiving the appropriation must submit a work plan​


1.16 and annual or semiannual progress reports in the form determined by the Legislative-Citizen​


1.17 Commission on Minnesota Resources, and comply with applicable reporting requirements​


1.18 under section 116P.16, and comply with the background check requirements under section​


1.19 116P.21. None of the money provided may be spent unless the commission has approved​


1.20 the pertinent work plan. Modifications to the approved work plan and budget expenditures​


1.21 shall be made through the amendment process established by the commission. The​


1.22 commission shall ensure that the expenditures and outcomes described in the work plan for​


1.23 appropriations funded by the environment and natural resources trust fund are met.​


1​Section 1.​
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2.1 (c) The peer review procedures created under section 116P.08 must also be used to​


2.2 review, comment, and report to the commission on research proposals applying for an​


2.3 appropriation from the oil overcharge money under section 4.071, subdivision 2.​


2.4 (d) The commission may adopt operating procedures to fulfill its duties under this chapter.​


2.5 (e) As part of the operating procedures, the commission shall:​


2.6 (1) ensure that members' expectations are to participate in all meetings related to funding​


2.7 decision recommendations;​


2.8 (2) recommend adequate funding for increased citizen outreach and communications​


2.9 for trust fund expenditure planning;​


2.10 (3) allow administrative expenses as part of individual project expenditures based on​


2.11 need;​


2.12 (4) provide for project outcome evaluation;​


2.13 (5) keep the grant application, administration, and review process as simple as possible;​


2.14 and​


2.15 (6) define and emphasize the leveraging of additional sources of money that project​


2.16 proposers should consider when making trust fund proposals.​


2.17 Sec. 2. [116P.21] CHILD PROTECTION BACKGROUND CHECKS REQUIRED.​


2.18 Subdivision 1. Requirement. Notwithstanding section 299C.62, subdivision 5, a recipient​


2.19 of an appropriation from the trust fund that is a children's service provider, as defined in​


2.20 section 299C.61, subdivision 5, must perform a background check under sections 299C.60​


2.21 to 299C.64, on all children's service workers, as defined in section 299C.61, subdivision 6.​


2.22 This requirement applies from commencement to completion of the project for which the​


2.23 appropriation was received.​


2.24 Subd. 2. Certification. As part of the work plan required by section 116P.05, subdivision​


2.25 2, a recipient of an appropriation from the trust fund must certify to the commission either​


2.26 that it has and will continue to comply with the requirements of this section, or that it is not​


2.27 a children's service provider, as defined in section 299C.61, subdivision 5.​


2.28 Subd. 3. Liability. The Legislative-Citizen Commission on Minnesota Resources, and​


2.29 its members and staff, are immune from any civil or criminal liability that arise from any​


2.30 act or omission related to the performance of background checks or certifications required​


2.31 under this chapter.​


2​Sec. 2.​
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3.1 Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2018, section 299C.62, subdivision 2, is amended to read:​


3.2 Subd. 2. Background check; requirements. (a) The superintendent may not perform​


3.3 a background check under this section unless the children's service provider submits a​


3.4 written document, signed by the children's service worker on whom the background check​


3.5 is to be performed, containing the following:​


3.6 (1) a question asking whether the children's service worker has ever been convicted of​


3.7 a background check crime and if so, requiring a description of the crime and the particulars​


3.8 of the conviction;​


3.9 (2) a notification to the children's service worker that the children's service provider will​


3.10 request the superintendent to perform a background check under this section; and​


3.11 (3) a notification to the children's service worker of the children's service worker's rights​


3.12 under subdivision 3.​


3.13 (b) Background checks performed under this section may only be requested by and​


3.14 provided to authorized representatives of a children's service provider who have a need to​


3.15 know the information and may be used only for the purposes of sections 116P.21, and​


3.16 299C.60 to 299C.64. Background checks may be performed pursuant to this section not​


3.17 later than one year after the document is submitted under this section.​


3​Sec. 3.​
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